
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 

Amended 
July 8, 2013 

5:00 PM 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Dr. Kirk Walters, Senior Pastor, Metropolitan Church of God 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 
6. City Manager’s Report 
7. Councilors’ Reports 
8. Presentation – Vestavia Hills Chamber of Commerce 
9. Approval Of Minutes – June 20, 2013 (Meeting with the Mayor) and June 24, 2013 

(Regular Meeting)  

Old Business 

10. Resolution Number 4469 - A Resolution Authorizing The Funding and  The Purchasing 
Of  A Patrol Vehicle For The Vestavia Hills Police Department  (public hearing) 

New Business 

11. Resolution Number 4471 – A Resolution Approving An On-Premise 020-Restaurant 
Retail Liquor License For Foodbar LLC D/B/A Foodbar; 3154 Heights Village; George 
McMillan III, Executive 

12. Resolution Number 4472 – Accepting A Settlement From Travelers Insurance For A 
2006 Chevrolet Trailblazer; Declaring Said Vehicle As Surplus And Directing The 
Disposal Of Said Vehicle 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

13. Ordinance Number 2450 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3312 Blueberry Lane; Lot 137 
Buckhead, 4th Sector; Brian And Shannon Fagan, Owners  (public hearing) 



14. Ordinance Number 2451 – Rezoning – 3312 Blueberry Lane; Lot 137, Buckhead, 4th 
Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Compatible Zoning 
For Annexation; Brian And Shannon Fagan, Owners  (public hearing) 

15. Ordinance Number 2452 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2469 Jannebo Road; Lot 123, 
Buckhead, 4th Sector; Eric And Robin White, Owners  (public hearing) 

16. Ordinance Number 2453 – Rezoning – 2469 Jannebo Road, Lot 123, Buckhead, 4th 
Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Compatible Zoning 
For Annexation; Eric And Robin White, Owners  (public hearing) 

17. Ordinance Number 2454 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 4595 Old Looney Mill Road; 
Lot 1, Old Looney Mill Development; Brandon And Kathryn Falls; Owners  (public 
hearing) 

18. Ordinance Number 2455 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 4604 Old Looney Mill Road; 
Lot 1 WO Brasseale Subd; Jacquelyn G. Britt, Owner  (public hearing) 

19. Ordinance Number 2456 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 4608 & 4612 Old Looney Mill 
Road; Lots 2 & 3, WO Brasseale Subd; Virginia W. Wood, Owner  (public hearing) 

20. Ordinance Number 2457 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2855 Five Oaks Lane; John 
Santamour, Owner  (public hearing) 

21. Ordinance Number 2458 – Rezoning – 4595, 4604, 4608 And 4612 Old Looney Mill 
Road And 2855 Five Oaks Lane; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills 
R-1, Compatible Zoning For Annexation; Brandon Falls, Kathryn Falls, Jacquelyn Britt, 
Virginia Wood And John Santamour, Owners   (public hearing) 

22. Resolution Number 4464 – Annexation – 2549 Skyland Drive; Lot 6, Block 3, Dolly 
Ridge Estates; Derrell And Terry Crim, Owners   (public hearing) 

23. Ordinance Number 2459 - Annexation – Overnight - 2549 Skyland Drive; Lot 6, Block 3, 
Dolly Ridge Estates; Derrell And Terry Crim, Owners   (public hearing) 

24. Resolution Number 4465 – Annexation – 2615 April Drive; Lot 10, Altadena Acres; 
James And Emily Pace, Owners  (public hearing) 

25. Ordinance Number 2460 - Annexation – Overnight - 2615 April Drive; Lot 10, Altadena 
Acres; James And Emily Pace, Owners  (public hearing) 

26. Resolution Number 4466 – Annexation – 2624 Altadena Road; Part Of Estate 5, 
Westbrook Estates; David And Pamela Hultstrand, Owners   (public hearing) 

27. Ordinance Number 2461 - Annexation – Overnight - 2624 Altadena Road; Part Of Estate 
5, Westbrook Estates; David And Pamela Hultstrand, Owners   (public hearing) 

28. Citizens Comments  
29. Motion For Adjournment 



Meeting with the Mayor 
June 20, 2013 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

MEETING WITH THE MAYOR 
 

MINUTES 
 

JUNE 20, 2013 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a regularly scheduled Meeting with the 
Mayor on this date at 4:30 PM following posting/publication pursuant to Alabama law.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the roll was checked with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Alberto Zaragoza, Mayor 
      Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
      John Henley 
      George Pierce 

Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Jim St. John, Interim City Manager 
      Dan Rary, Chief of Police 
      Wendy Appling, GIS Technician II 
 
 

The Mayor opened the meeting and welcomed the persons in attendance. 
 
The Mayor discussed with the Council several topics/updates, including but not 

limited to: 
• The Birmingham-Jefferson County Transit Authority (MAX) presented 

their proposed MAX FY2014 Annual Capital and Operating Budget and 
explained the increase requested of the City of Vestavia Hills. 

• Various city issues were discussed. 
 
 There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:15 PM. 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Wendy Appling 
GIS Technician II 



City Council Minutes 
June 24, 2013, 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

JUNE 24, 2013 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      George Pierce  
      John Henley 
      Jim Sharp 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jim St. John, Interim City Manager 
      Patrick Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Conrad Garrison, City Planner 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Melvin Turner III, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Dep. Finance Director 
      Danny Rary, Police Chief 
      Tim Holcomb, Deputy Police Chief 
      Fred Baughman, Economic Dev. Director 
 
 Invocation was given by Dennis Anderson, Vestavia Hills Baptist Church, 
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION 
 

• None. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 

• Mr. St. John stated that the City is waiting on an appraisal of the old Library to 
determine the current market value before proceeding with entertaining offers for 
the purchase of the property. 



City Council Minutes 
June 24, 2013, 

Page 2 
 

• The Library in the Forest is having wonderful enrollment on the summer reading 
program this year; many have enrolled online. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• The Mayor stated that the Wing Ding which was held last week was a big success 
with proceeds going to help Cystic Fibrosis.  

• Mr. Pierce announced that the Chamber of Commerce will be holding “I Love 
America Day” festivities on Thursday, July 3 and again on August 16.  Everyone 
is invited to attend. 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Mr. Turner presented the financial reports for month ending May 2013.  He read 
and explained the balances. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the June 10, 2013 (Regular Meeting) were presented for approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the June 10, 2013 

(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Pierce and 
second by Mr. Henley.  Roll Call vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4458 

Resolution Number 4458 - Accepting A Bid For The Purchase And Installation Of 
Bleachers For The Parks And Recreation Department Of The City Of 
Vestavia Hills  (Public Hearing) 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4458 was by Mr. Henley and second 
was by Mr. Sharp. 

 
 Mr. Davis stated that this Resolution accepts the low bid for purchase and 
installation of six sets of bleachers.  The bid price slightly exceeds the budgeted amount 
for bleachers and the plan is to request that the Park and Recreation Foundation 



City Council Minutes 
June 24, 2013, 

Page 3 
 

reimburse the City the remaining expense.  He stated that these will be placed in Cahaba 
Heights. 
 
 The Council asked questions regarding the disposal of the existing bleachers, the 
potential use of the older bleachers, etc. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else present 
to address the Council concerning this issue, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4459 

Resolution Number 4459 - A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 
To Execute An Agreement With The Regional Planning Commission 
Of Greater Birmingham For Development Of A Form-Based Zoning 
Classification For The City Of Vestavia Hills   (Public Hearing) 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4459 was by Mr. Sharp and second 
was by Mr. Henley. 

 
 Mr. Garrison explained that this Resolution authorizes the City to pursue drafting 
a form-based zoning classification to be included into the City’s zoning ordinance once 
completed.  The request is funded by an 80/20 grant through the RPCGB Building 
Communities Grant Program.  The City’s match is just over $20,000. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that he has reviewed this request and the contract is in keeping 
with Alabama law.  He stated that he reserves the right to comment on the zoning 
classification after the drafting in order to ensure it, too, meets the law. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else present 
to address the Council concerning this issue, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 24, 2013, 

Page 4 
 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4462 

Resolution Number 4462 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 
To Execute And Deliver An Agreement With The City Of Hoover 
Regarding ATRIP Project No. 37-03-34 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4462 was by Mr. Pierce and second 
was by Mr. Henley. 

 
 Mr. Brady explained that the ATRIP Project was approved recently by the 
Council and this agreement will allow Hoover to pay his pro-rata share of the cost. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that the City has an existing contract with CDG to do this 
project and Hoover will pay its share of it pursuant to this agreement.  He recommended 
that the Council approve the agreement. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4463 

Resolution Number 4463 – A Resolution Ascertaining, Fixing And Determining The 
Amount Of Assessment To Be Charged As A Lien On The Property 
Known As 1459 Montgomery Highway, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 
35216; Parcel ID # 39-01-1-001.002.000-RR-2 And 29-36-4-007-
005.000-RR6, In The City Of Vestavia Hills As A Result Of The City 
Of Vestavia Hills Ordering The Demolition Of The Building On The 
Property Pursuant To Ordinance No. 2382 (Public Hearing) 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4463 was by Mr. Henley and second 
was by Mr. Sharp. 

 
 Ben Goldman, Hand Arendall Attorneys, stated that this Resolution is following 
up a recent mediation between the City and the owners of the Motor Lodge.  He 
introduced Mr. Larry Maddox, Mr. Richard Maddox and Ms. Karen Maddox who were 
present at the meeting.  He explained that the mediation agreement allows for the City to 
execute and record a lien against the property in the amount of $75,000 to cover the 
expenses that the City has paid to get to this point.  The agreement allows the owners to 
demolish the building within the next seven months at their expense.  If, for any reason, 



City Council Minutes 
June 24, 2013, 

Page 5 
 

the owners fail to demolish the building and the City proceeds to contract for demolition, 
in such event the City will record another lien on the property for those expenses.  He 
presented a copy of the notice that was served to the owners and asked that the 
documents be attached to the Resolution as part of the record.  Mr. Goldman added that 
the date of completion for these tasks is December 22, 2013. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing. 
 
 Larry Maddox, one of the owners of the Motor Lodge, stated that he has 
attempted to bring demolition experts to the property for quotes but has been denied 
access.  He stated that he has phoned Mr. Blanton, the Building Official, and Chief Rary 
but has not been able to secure access. 
 
 Mr. Goldman stated that the Maddoxes’ attorney requested contact numbers to 
allow this access and was furnished with the contact numbers of both Mr. Blanton and 
Chief St. John, Interim City Manager.  He stated that Mr. Blanton’s cellular number was 
even included in that information. 
 
 Mr. Maddox stated that he was not aware that information had been provided to 
his attorney and requested an extension of the days from May 22 to June 15 be given 
back to him because of the lack of communication and access. 
 
 The Mayor stated that the City had furnished his attorney with all contact 
numbers and access would have been obtained by simply using those contacts.  He stated 
that the Council feels the December 22, 2013 deadline should remain intact. 
 
 There being no one else to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public 
hearing and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4470 

Resolution Number 4470 - A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Janitorial/Cleaning 
Supplies For The City Of Vestavia Hills 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4470 was by Mr. Henley and second 
was by Mr. Pierce. 

 
 Mr. St. John stated that the City Manager formed a committee to study 
centralizing the purchase of cleaning supplies within the City.  After months of study, a 
bid was put together and vendors were invited to bid on a large number of the common 



City Council Minutes 
June 24, 2013, 

Page 6 
 

supplies purchased by various departments of the City.  After analyzing the bids, 
recommendation was made by the Committee to accept the bid from Jan Pak.  A 
representative from the company is present to answer any questions. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4468 

Resolution Number 4468 - A Resolution Authorizing The Funding and The 
Purchasing Of A Rescue Cot For The Vestavia Hills Fire Department 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4468 was by Mr. Pierce and second 
was by Mr. Sharp. 

 
 Mr. St. John stated that this equipment replaces a 13 year old cot in one of the 
City’s rescue vehicles.  He explained that the item was budgeted in the “Supplies” budget 
but was deemed a capital item because of the cost and eventual depreciation.  This 
request allows the item to be purchased under capital. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Sharp – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting of July 8, 
2013 at 5 PM. 

• Resolution Number 4464 – Annexation – 2549 Skyland Drive; Lot 6, Block 3, 
Dolly Ridge Estates; Derrell And Terry Crim, Owners   (public hearing) 

• Resolution Number 4465 – Annexation – 2615 April Drive; Lot 10, Altadena 
Acres; James And Emily Pace, Owners  (public hearing) 

• Resolution Number 4466 – Annexation – 2624 Altadena Road; Part Of Estate 5, 
Westbrook Estates; David And Pamela Hultstrand, Owners   (public hearing) 

• Resolution Number 4467 – Annexation – 2612 Acton Drive; Lot 6, Acton’s Add 
To Altadena Valley; Estate Of Kathryn Smith; Randolph Q. Smith, Executor; 
Kim Bludsworth, Representing  (public hearing) 



City Council Minutes 
June 24, 2013, 

Page 7 
 

• Resolution Number 4469 - A Resolution Authorizing The Funding and  The 
Purchasing Of  A Patrol Vehicle For The Vestavia Hills Police Department  
(public hearing) 

 
CITIZENS COMMENTS 

 
Celia Anthony, 2611 Whetstone Road, stated that her home has been burglarized 

twice in just a few weeks and described the incidents.  She stated that employees with the 
City erred on both calls.  The first is because the dispatcher misinterpreted and reported 
the call to the officer as a “prowler” rather than a “burglary in progress” and on the 
second, no one responded for 20 minutes. 

 
Chief Rary stated that he has reviewed the incidents and admitted that the second 

incident was an error on the nighttime supervisor.  He indicated that he has taken steps to 
correct and/or improve conditions surrounding these incidents.  He didn’t give specifics 
of the case because of the ongoing investigation, but he assured Ms. Anthony that his 
department is doing all things necessary to ensure the residents are as safe as possible. 
 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn was by Mr. Henley.  Meeting adjourned at 6:30 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4469 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FUNDING AND PURCHASING FOR A 
NEW PATROL VEHICLE FOR THE POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 

HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase a new patrol vehicle needed for the 

Police Department as detailed in the memorandum from the Police Chief dated June 19, 

2013; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4469 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of July, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 





 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4471 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR FOODBAR LLC D/B/A FOODBAR; GEORGE 
MCMILLAN III, EXECUTIVES 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves 

the alcohol license for Foodbar LLC d/b/a Foodbar, located at 3154 Heights Village, 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the on-premise sale of 020 - Restaurant Retail Liquor; 

George McMillan III, executive. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 8th day of July, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 













RESOLUTION NUMBER 4472 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A SETTLEMENT FROM TRAVELERS 
INSURANCE FOR A 2006 CHEVROLET TRAILBLAZER; DECLARING 
SAID VEHICLE AS SURPLUS AND DIRECTING THE DISPOSAL OF 
SAID VEHICLE 

 
 WHEREAS, on September 8, 2005, the Vestavia Hills Police Department purchased a 

2006 Chevrolet Trailblazer, VIN # 1GNDS13S562193779 for $18,071.38; and 

 WHEREAS, said vehicle was purchased utilizing funds from confiscations designated 

for law enforcement purposes; and 

 WHEREAS, on June 12, 2013, the vehicle was involved in a vehicular accident which 

was deemed to be the fault of the other party; and 

 WHEREAS, Travelers Insurance received a Market Valuation Report which declared the 

vehicle to be a total loss; and 

 WHEREAS, Travelers Commercial Insurance Company has issued a statement to settle 

the insurance claim with the City on behalf of its client as detailed in a letter from Crystal 

Collins, Total Loss Claim Representative, Travelers Insurance, dated June 26, 2013, a copy of 

which is attached and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4472 as though written fully 

therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have reviewed the documentation and feel it is 

in the best public interest to accept such settlement, declare said vehicle surplus and authorize the 

disposal of the vehicle pursuant to the settlement with the option of the insurance agent taking 

possession and obtaining a salvage title on behalf of the City. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to accept the offer from Travelers Insurance 

pursuant to the above-described letter with the insurance agency making application for a 

salvage title for the vehicle on behalf of the City and retaining possession of the vehicle; 

and 

2. The City Manager is authorized to execute and deliver a Power of Attorney allowing 

Travelers Insurance to secure a salvage title on said vehicle on behalf of the City; and 



3. Funds from the settlement shall be returned to the City’s confiscation account to be 

earmarked for law enforcement purposes; and 

4. This Resolution Number 4472 is effective upon adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of July, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 









Ordinance Number 2450 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2450 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of April, 2013, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3312 Blueberry Lane 
Lot 137, Buckhead, 4th Sector 

Brian and Shannon Fagan, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2450 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 22nd day of July, 2013. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2450 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of July, 2013, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2450 
Page 3 

 

 

























Ordinance Number 2451 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2451 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF A PARCEL OF PROPERTY FROM 
JEFFERSON COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia 

Hills R-1;  

3312 Blueberry Lane 
Lot 137, Buckhead, 4th Sector 

Brian and Shannon Fagan, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of July, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2451 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2451 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of July, 2013 as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2451 
Page 3 

 

 



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     June 11, 2013 
 

 
• CASE:  P-0613-15 

 
• REQUESTED ACTION:   Rezoning from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills 

R-1 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3312 Blueberry Ln. 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Brian Matthew Fagan 

 
• REPRESENTING AGENT:   

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Lot is on Blueberry Ln. adjacent to Rocky Ridge Rd. 

Applicant is currently in the annexation process. 
 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the Vestavia Hills Comprehensive Plan. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted. 
 
4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted.  

 
• PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Bill Visintainer made the motion to recommend approval. Second was made by Della 
Fancher. Motion was approved unanimously.  



Ordinance Number 2452 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2452 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of April, 2013, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2469 Jannebo Road 
Lot 123, Buckhead, 4th Sector 

Eric and Robin White, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2452 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 22nd day of July, 2013. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2452 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of July, 2013, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2452 
Page 3 

 

 



















Ordinance Number 2453 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2453 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF A PARCEL OF PROPERTY FROM 
JEFFERSON COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia 

Hills R-1;  

2469 Jannebo Road 
Lot 123, Buckhead, 4th Sector 

Eric and Robin White, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of July, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2453 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2453 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of July, 2013 as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2453 
Page 3 

 

 



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     June 11, 2013 
 

 
• CASE:  P-0613-14 

 
• REQUESTED ACTION:   Rezoning from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills 

R-1 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2469 Jannebo Rd. 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Eric & Robin White 

 
• REPRESENTING AGENT:   

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Lot is on Jannebp Rd. adjacent to Rocky Ridge Rd. 

Applicant is currently in the annexation process. 
 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The request is consistent with 

the Vestavia Hills Comprehensive Plan. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted. 
 
4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted.  

 
• PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
•  

Bill Visintainer made the motion to recommend approval. Second was made by Blaine 
House. Motion was approved unanimously.  



Ordinance Number 2454 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2454 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of April, 2013, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

4595 Old Looney Mill Road 
Lot 1 Old Looney Mill Development 
Brandon and Kathryn Falls, Owner(s) 

 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2454 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 22nd day of July, 2013. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2454 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of July, 2013, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2454 
Page 3 

 

 

















Ordinance Number 2455 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2455 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of April, 2013, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

4604 Old Looney Mill Road 
Lot 1 W.O. Brasseale Subd. 
Jacquelyn G. Britt, Owner(s) 

 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2455 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 22nd day of July, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2455 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of July, 2013, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinancce Number 245
Page

55 
e 3 

 

 



















Ordinance Number 2456 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2456 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of April, 2013, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

4608 & 4612 Old Looney Mill Road 
Lots 2 & 3 W.O. Brasseale Subdivision 

Virginia W. Wood, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2456 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 22nd day of July, 2013. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2456 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of July, 2013, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinancce Number 245
Page

56 
e 3 

 

 



















Ordinance Number 2457 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2457 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 22nd day of April, 2013, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2855 Five Oaks Lane 
John J. Santamour, Owner(s) 

 
More Particularly Described As Follows: 
 

A parcel of land located in the South ½ of the NE ¼ of Section 34, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, situated in Jefferson County, Alabama, 
more precisely described as follows: 
 
Commence at the NW corner of the SE ¼ of Section 34, Township 18 
South, Range 2 West, thence 43 degrees, 55 minutes, 30 seconds left in a 
Southeasterly direction a distance of 87.60 feet; thence 89 degrees, 50 
minutes right in a Southwesterly direction a distance of 164.20 feet; thence 
81 degrees, 20 minutes right in a Northwesterly direction a distance of 
133.19 feet; thence 85 degrees, 17 minutes right in a Northeasterly 



Ordinance Number 2457 
Page 2 

 
direction a distance of 181.52 feet to a point on a curve, having a radius of 
431.66 feet; thence 98 degrees, 06 minutes right to the chord of said curve 
and in a Southeasterly direction along arc of said curve to the right a 
distance of 86.61 feet to the point of beginning; being situated in Jefferson 
County, Alabama. 
 

 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 22nd day of July, 2013. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2457 
Page 3 

 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2457 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of July, 2013, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2457 
Page 4 

 

 





















Ordinance Number 2458 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2458 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF A PARCEL OF PROPERTY FROM 
JEFFERSON COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia 

Hills R-1;  

4595 Old Looney Mill Road;  
Lot 1, Old Looney Mill Development; 
Brandon and Kathryn Falls, Owners 

 
4605, 4608, 4612 Old Looney Mill Road;  

Lots 1-3 WO Brasseale Subd;  
Jaquelyn Britt and Virginia Wood, Owners 

 
2855 Five Oaks Lane 

John Santamour, Owner 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of July, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2458 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2458 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of July, 2013 as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, 
Vestavia Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2458 
Page 3 

 

 



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     June 11, 2013 
 

 
• CASE:  P-0613-17 

 
• REQUESTED ACTION:   Rezoning from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills 

R-1 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  4604, 4608, 4612, 4595 Old Looney Mill Rd. and 2855 
Five Oaks Ln 

 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Jacquelyn G. Britt, , Virginia W. Wood, Brandon K. & 

Kathryn Kelly Falls and  John Santamour 
 

• REPRESENTING AGENT:   
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Lots are in the Acton Rd area of Vestavia Hills and 
close to Lifetime Fitness. Applicants are currently in the annexation process. 

 
• CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN:  The request is consistent with the 

Cahaba Heights Community Plan. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted. 
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted. 
 
4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted.  

 
 
 
 



 2

 
 
 

• PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Bill Visintainer made the motion to recommend approval. Second was made by Fred 
Goodwin. Motion was approved unanimously.  

 
 
 
 

 



Resolution Number 4464 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4464 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated March 26, 2013, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous 

to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 22nd day of July, 2013; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be to the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 24th day of July, 2013. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of October, 2013, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, 

a public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition 



Resolution Number 4464 
Page 2 

 
and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to 

such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance 

annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4464 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 

annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2549 Skyland Drive 
Lot 6, Block 3, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Addition 

Terry and Derrell Crim, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of July, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Resolution Number 4464 
Page 3 

 

 



Annexation Committee Petition Review

Property: 2549 Skyland Drive

Owners: Derrell Crim

Date: 06-11-2013

1. The property in question iscontiguous to the city limits.
Yes I / I No I [ Comments

2. The land use of the petitioned property iscompatible with land use in thearea.
Yes I / 1 No 1 | Comments:

3. The property being petitioned is noted in the September 2006 Annexation Policy
Task Force Report asan area of interest to thecity for annexation.
Yes I / I No I I Comments

4. Streets and drainage structures are in substantial compliance with city regulations
and buildingcodes, and in good condition at the time of the annexation.
Yes I / I No I I Comments __

5. Individual household has aJefferson orShelby County Tax Assessor minimum
market value of $190,500.00 Meets city criteria: Yes__ZJ NoHH
Comment: majority of area is in citv limits

6. This street has fewer than 100% of the individual properties within the limits of
the city
Yes I • I No
Number oftotal homes _13 Number incity _10_

7. Fire dues pursuant to Act#604 of the State of Alabama, and any other
assessments onthe property shall be the responsibility of the property owner, and
their payment proven to thecity.
Agreed to by petitioner: Yes I / I No I I Comment



Property: 2549 Skyland Drive

8. A non-refundable administrative fee of $100 has been paid to the city.
Furthermore, voluntary contributions, including an application fee, of
$ tbd will be paid to offset costs associated with the annexation.
Yes I / 1 No I I Comment

Property is free and clear ofhazardous waste, debris and materials.
Yes 1/1 No I I Comment

10. Are there any concerns from city departments?
Yes I I No 1 / I Comments:

11. Information onchildren: Number in family
No 1

; Plan to enroll in VH
schools Yes I / Comments: 1 child in nnllenft

Other Comments:

George Pierce
Chairman

HUM pi uptSrtl

-fills in oxistift
d aro in VH;





Jefferson County Electronic Courthouse -TaxAssessor - Parcel ID for Legal Information Page 1 of 1

i
Serving the citizens of Jefferson County, Alabama

Tax Assessor - Parcel ID for Legal Information

Inquiries to Tax Assessor recordings

Return to Electronic Courthouse Search Home

Tax Assessor County Tax Inquiry - Tax Year • 2011-

Mailing Address

CRIMM TERRY GANN &

2549 SKYLAND DR

VESTAVIA AL / 352434607

Site Address

2549 SKYLAND

DR 35243

Fire District (ESN): #504 ROCKY RIDGE F.D.

Legal Discription

LOT 6 BLK 3 DOLLY RIDGE ESTS

2ND ADD

Miscellaneous Information

Section: 32 Parcel: 28-32-4-6-2-RR-0

Township: 18S Map Book: 76

Range: 2W Map Page: 82

Tax Year: 2011

Land Value: $79700.00 Tax District: 002

Improvements Value: $110800.00 Sub District: 0

Total Value: $190500.00 Deed Book: 200410

Deed Page: 7404 Deed Date: 20040620

Land Use Information

Land Use One: RESIDENCE-SINGLE FAMILY

Land Use Two: UNAVAILABLE

Class One: 3

Class Two:

Disclaimer: All values are subject to change. If you feel that there is a technical error on the site, please
contact us. For general information, please call the office of interest:

The Board of Equalization

Tax Assessor's Office

Tax Collector's Office

(205) 325-5566

(205) 325-5505

(205) 325-5500

© Copyright 2008. Jefferson County Information Technology - All Rights Reserved.

http://www.jeffcointouch.com/ecourthouse/ta-parcel-ID-results4.asp?listTaxYear=2011&lis... 5/1/201.



Prii'ttte WcaltA-Servi,

AC Financial Partners

LIFE I MONEY I BALANCE

March 27, 2013

Dear Becky,

My family and I are requesting annexation into the city of Vestavia
Hills for multiple reasons.

My daughter's friends all are involved in city activities. Additionally,
we are joining Shades Mt Baptist Church and want her to enjoy these
experiences together.

As a member of the Vestavia Hills Chamber of Commerce and Vice-
Chair of the Chamber's Business Development Committee, my
involvement is extensive in Vestavia. I am also a 2012 graduate of
Leadership Vestavia Hills and would like the opportunity to serve the
city where opportunities exist.

Finally we are members of Vestavia Country Club and again find many
of our friends involved in city activities of which we would like to
participate.

Thank you for the consideration and we hope to soon be a part of the
City of Vestavia Hills.

Best regards,

Derrell Crimm

2549 Skyland Drive
Vestavia AL 35243

201 Office Park Drive, Suite 300 | Birmingham, AL 35223 | 205.278.8210 | f 205.278.8204 | www.acfinancialpartners.com
Associates otAC Financial Partners arc registered representatives ofLincoln Financial Advisors Corp. Securities and investment advisor)' services offered through Lincoln Financial Advisors
Corp.. abroker-dealer and registered investment advisor. Insurance offered through Lincoln affiliates and other fine companies.



•D
U



Resolution Number 3824

Page 6

STATE OF ALABAMA

^&P£eS><>n COUNTY

PETITION FOR ANNEXATION TO THE

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA

Date ofPetition: /7?0>L*/l y?^ 2&/Z
To the Honorable Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama:

We, the undersigned owners of the properties set out in red outline in Exhibit "A"
attached hereto, which properties are contiguous to the City limits of the City of Vestavia Hills,
Alabama, under the authority of Act No. 32 of the Special Session of the Alabama Legislature of
1964, do hereby petition the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, that the properties set out in red
outline in Exhibit "A" attached, situated in 2Ze(f&S&t>v\. County, Alabama, be annexed
to the City ofVestavia Hills, Alabama. The metes and bounds description of the boundary of the
property of the undersigned proposed to be annexed is also set out on said Exhibit "A" and a map
showing in red the property proposed for annexation by this petition is also attached and made a
part hereof.

The undersigned petitioners do further petition that the Honorable Mayor and City
Council of the City ofVestavia Hills, Alabama, set a date for the hearing of this petition and any
objections in writing to the petition or protest, on a date certain and that no less than ninety (90)
days before said date certain for said hearing on this petition, that a notice of said hearing along
with this petition be published in a newspaper of general circulation in Jefferson County,
Alabama.

We, the undersigned petitioners do also ask that the Honorable Mayor and City Council
of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do all things necessary and requisite to comply with the
terms of Act No. 32 of the Special Session of the Alabama Legislature of 1964.



LOT:

BLOCK:

EXHIBIT "A"

Resolution Number 3824

Page 7

SURVEY: ~P OlUY Ku>6>£ ET&r/trEX Z** AJdi4n\>ss

RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 76 PAGE 6> 2- IN THE

PROBATE OFFICE OF ^TKVSt^ COUNTY, ALABAMA.

3C I-1COUNTY ZONING

COMPATIBLE CITY ZONING

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (METES AND BOUNDS):



Resolution Number 3824

PageS

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunto set their hands and seals, or
caused these presents to be executed by their duly authorized representatives, with full authority.

SIGNATURE(S) - DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

$U*4*t (XJL_ Lot ^ Block 3 Survey iV/iy^V f^l^/jtJd
^J&Alff L/u^fLrh^ Lot £ Block 3 survey f)o//vi ^AuBsh Z** fi-<U

Lot Block Survey

(Use reverse side hereoffor additional signatures andproperty descriptions, ifneeded).

STATE OF ALABAMA

^<^^£fr>r> COUNTY
JJ^&ysC'// C^fi AtA\ being duly sworn says: I am one of the persons who

signed the above petition, and I certify that said petition contains the signatures of all the owners
of the described property.

Signature ofCertifier

Subscribed and sworn before me this the C^ day of l^-^Gsf-Xs^—- 20_/j5

«*A^
rotary Pubdic

My commission expires: ^ / ^ ^ I Z~&'/ ^

/Jq>4^^



EXHIBIT "B"

Resolution Number 3824

Page 9

VESTAVIA HILLS BOARD OF EDUCATION
1204 Montgomery Highway

Vestavia Hills AL 35216

(To be completed by the City)

Date of Annexation Petition

Resolution:

Overnight Ordinance:
90 Day Final Ordinance:

1 Action Taken: Grant

Deny

Date: Number:

Date: Number:

Date: Number:

(To be completed by Homeowner)

Name(s) of Homeowner(s): T>e<Wt\\ &^£nKfl>\M. a^A^Jk/t<^ Cr.Cn M/H
Address:

City: Ve&)#\/lkH7lU State: Ai^
Information on Children:

Zip: 35*¥3

Plan to Enroll In

Vestavia Hills School?

Name(s) Age School Grade Yes No

1.

Hv) W ^ CtImk H UctfAL X
2.

kW*~ /M. tri<n<* 13>
V

£* X
3.

4.

5.

6.

Approximate date for enrolling students in Vestavia Hills City Schools if above response is
"yes". A uurnAJ- 3-P*?jj,



Ordinance Number 2459 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2459 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND 

EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY 
OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, SO AS TO 
EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL 
TERRITORY NOW WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE 
LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN OTHER 
TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Terry and Derrell Crim dated 

March 26, 2013, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 



Ordinance Number 2459 
Page 2 

 
distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

 
2549 Skyland Drive 

Lot 6, Block 3, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Addition 
Terry and Derrell Crim 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of July, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2459 
Page 3 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance Number 2459 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of July, 2013, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2459 
Page 4 

 

 



Resolution Number 4465 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4465 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated April 16, 2013, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous 

to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 22nd day of July, 2013; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be to the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 24th day of July, 2013. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of October, 2013, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, 

a public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition 



Resolution Number 4465 
Page 2 

 
and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to 

such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance 

annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4465 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 

annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2615 April Drive 
Lot 10, Altadena Acres 

James and Emily Pace, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of July, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number «Resolution_Number» 
Page 3 

 

 



Annexation Committee Petition Review

Property: 2615 April Drive

Owners:—Estate-pfKalhTyTi Smith £1/VlHa wv#*ies VCtee—'

Date: 06-11-2013

1. The property in question is contiguous to thecity limits.
Yes / No I Comments:

2. The land use of the petitioned property is compatible with land use in the area.
Yes I / 1 No | 1 Comments:

3. The property being petitioned is noted inthe September 2006 Annexation Policy
Task Force Report as an area of interest to the city for annexation.
Yes 1 / 1 No I I Comments

4. Streets anddrainage structures are in substantial compliance with city regulations
and building codes, and in good condition at the time of the annexation.
Yes 1 / I No 1 I Comments

5, Individual household has a Jefferson orShelby County Tax Assessor minimum
market value of $265.000.00 Meets city criteria: Yes FTl NoPH
Comment: Land value reduced: owners did not purchase vacant land

6. This street has fewer than 100% ofthe individual properties within the limitsof
the city
Yes / No

Number oftotal homes _10 Number in city 3_

7. Fire dues pursuant to Act#604 of the State of Alabama, and anyother
assessments on the property shall bethe responsibility of the property owner, and
their payment proven to the city;
Agreed to by petitioner: Yes I / I No I 1 Comment



Property: 2615 April Drive

8. Anon-refundable administrative fee of$100 has been paid to the city.
Furthermore, voluntary contributions, including an application fee, of
$ tpd will bepaid tooffset costs associated with the annexation.
Yes I / 1 No 1 | Comment

9. Property is free and clear of hazardous waste, debris and materials.
Yes I / 1 No 1 1 Comment

10. Are there any concerns from city departments?
Yes I I No I / I Comments:

11. Information onchildren: Number in family __0_
schools Yes I / I No I I Comments:

Other Comments:

Georgenerce
Chairman

Children oro proochool (agoo 4 ond-4)-

; Plan to enroll in VH

















Ordinance Number 2460 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2460 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND 

EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY 
OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, SO AS TO 
EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL 
TERRITORY NOW WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE 
LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN OTHER 
TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by James and Emily Pace dated 

April 16, 2013, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 



Ordinance Number 2460 
Page 2 

 
distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

2615 April Drive 
Lot 10, Altadena Acres 
James and Emily Pace 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of July, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2460 
Page 3 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2460 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of July, 2013, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2460 
Page 4 

 

 



Resolution Number 4466 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4466 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 

OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated April 25, 2013, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous 

to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 22nd day of July, 2013; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be to the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 24th day of July, 2013. 

 2.  That on the 28th day of October, 2013, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, 

a public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition 



Resolution Number 4466 
Page 2 

 
and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to 

such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance 

annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4466 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 

annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2624 Altadena Road 
David and Pamela Hultstrand, Owner(s) 

 
More Particularly Described As Follows: 
 

Estate No. 5, according to the Map of J.P. Westbrook Estates, recorded in 
Map Book 27, Page 14, in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson 
County, Alabama; more particularly described as follows: 
 
Less and except:  Part of Estate #5 according to the map and survey of J. 
P. Westbrook Estates as recorded in Map Book 27, Page 14, in the Probate 
Office of Jefferson County, Alabama, more particularly described as 
follows:  Begin at the Northeast corner of said Estate #5 and run in a 
Northwesterly direction and along the Northeast boundary line of said 
Estate #5, a distance of 390 feet to the point of beginning; thence continue 
last described course in a Northwesterly direction a distance of 239.5 feet; 
thence turn left an angle of 90 degrees in a Southwesterly direction a 
distance of 200 feet; thence turn left an angle of 90 degrees in a 
Southeasterly direction and along the Southwest boundary line of said 
Estate #5 a distance of 239.5 feet; thence turn left an angle of 90 degrees 
in a Northeasterly direction a distance of 200 feet to the point of 
beginning. 
 
Also Less and except:  Part of Estate #5 according to the map and survey 
of J. P. Westbrook Estates as recorded in Map Book 27, Page 14, in the 
Probate Office of Jefferson County, Alabama, more particularly described 
as follows:  Begin at the Northeast corner of said Estate #5, and run in a 
Northwesterly direction and along the Northeast boundary line of said 
Estate #5, a distance of 629.5 feet to the point of beginning; thence 
continue last described course in a Northwesterly direction a distance of 



Resolution Number 4466 
Page 3 

 
373.3 feet, more or less, to the Northwesterly corner of said Estate #5; 
thence turn left an angle of 124 degrees 55’ in a Southerly direction and 
along the West boundary line of said Estate #5, a distance of 225.6 feet; 
thence turn left an angle of 55 degrees 05’ in a Southeasterly direction a 
distance of 244.07 feet; thence turn left an angle of 90 degrees 00’ in a 
Northeasterly direction a distance of 185.0 feet to the point of beginning. 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of July, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Resolution Number 4466 
Page 4 

 

 



Annexation Committee Petition Review

Property: 2624 Altadena Road

Owners: David W. Hultstrand

Date: 06-11-2013

1. The property in question is contiguous to the city limits.
Yes I / I No I I Comments:

2. The land use of the petitioned property iscompatible with land use inthe area.
Yes IV I No I I Comments:

3. The property being petitioned is noted in the September 2006 Annexation Policy
Task Force Report as an area of interest tothe city for annexation.
Yes I / 1 No I I Comments .

4. Streets and drainage structures are in substantial compliance with city regulations
and building codes, and in good condition at the time of the annexation.
Yes J / I No 1 1 Comments _____

5. Individual household has a Jefferson orShelby County Tax Assessor minimum
market value of $347.400.00 Meets city criteria: YesGD No d]
Comment:

6. This street has fewer than 100% of the individual properties within the limits of
the city
Yes I / 1 No_L
Number of total homes _n/a Number in city more than 50% area

7. Fire dues pursuant to Act#604 of the State of Alabama, and any other
assessments on the property shall be the responsibility of the property owner, and
their paymentproven to the city.
Agreed to by petitioner: Yes I / I No I 1 Comment



Property: 2624 Altadena Road

8. A non-refundable administrative fee of$100has been paid to the city.
Furthermore, voluntary contributions, including an application fee, of
$tbd will be paid to offset costs associated with the annexation.
Yes I / 1 No 1 I Comment

9. Property is free and clear of hazardous waste, debris andmaterials.
Yes I / I No I I Comment

10. Arethere any concerns from city departments?
Yes I I No 1 / I Comments:

; Plan to enroll in VH11. Information on children: Number in family
schools Yes 1 / I No JZZ
already

1 Comments: tyying inVH Schools

Other Comments:

George Pierce
Chairman



















Ordinance Number 2461 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2461 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND 

EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY 
OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, SO AS TO 
EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL 
TERRITORY NOW WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE 
LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN OTHER 
TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by David and Pamela Hultstrand 

dated April 25, 2013, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to 

the corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 



Ordinance Number 2461 
Page 2 

 
distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

2624 Altadena Road 
David and Pamela Hultstrand, Owner(s) 

 
More Particularly Described As Follows: 
 

Estate No. 5, according to the Map of J.P. Westbrook Estates, recorded in 
Map Book 27, Page 14, in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson 
County, Alabama; more particularly described as follows: 
 
Less and except:  Part of Estate #5 according to the map and survey of J. 
P. Westbrook Estates as recorded in Map Book 27, Page 14, in the Probate 
Office of Jefferson County, Alabama, more particularly described as 
follows:  Begin at the Northeast corner of said Estate #5 and run in a 
Northwesterly direction and along the Northeast boundary line of said 
Estate #5, a distance of 390 feet to the point of beginning; thence continue 
last described course in a Northwesterly direction a distance of 239.5 feet; 
thence turn left an angle of 90 degrees in a Southwesterly direction a 
distance of 200 feet; thence turn left an angle of 90 degrees in a 
Southeasterly direction and along the Southwest boundary line of said 
Estate #5 a distance of 239.5 feet; thence turn left an angle of 90 degrees 
in a Northeasterly direction a distance of 200 feet to the point of 
beginning. 
 
Also Less and except:  Part of Estate #5 according to the map and survey 
of J. P. Westbrook Estates as recorded in Map Book 27, Page 14, in the 
Probate Office of Jefferson County, Alabama, more particularly described 
as follows:  Begin at the Northeast corner of said Estate #5, and run in a 
Northwesterly direction and along the Northeast boundary line of said 
Estate #5, a distance of 629.5 feet to the point of beginning; thence 
continue last described course in a Northwesterly direction a distance of 
373.3 feet, more or less, to the Northwesterly corner of said Estate #5; 
thence turn left an angle of 124 degrees 55’ in a Southerly direction and 
along the West boundary line of said Estate #5, a distance of 225.6 feet; 
thence turn left an angle of 55 degrees 05’ in a Southeasterly direction a 
distance of 244.07 feet; thence turn left an angle of 90 degrees 00’ in a 
Northeasterly direction a distance of 185.0 feet to the point of beginning. 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 



Ordinance Number 2461 
Page 3 

 
Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of July, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2461 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of July, 2013, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2013. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2461 
Page 4 

 

 


	2013_0708CC_A
	2013_0620CC_MM
	2013_0624CC_M
	Resolution 4469
	Resolution 4471
	Resolution 4472
	Ordinance 2450
	Ordinance 2451
	Ordinance 2452
	Ordinance 2453
	Ordinance 2454
	Ordinance 2455
	Ordinance 2456
	Ordinance 2457
	Ordinance 2458
	Resolution 4464
	Ordinance 2459
	Resolution 4465
	Ordinance 2460
	Resolution 4466
	Ordinance 2461



